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DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM no
“operty Name:  Oakland Hall Inventory Number: CT-139
“Address: 2395 S. Solomons Island Road (2/4) Historic district: yes X  no
City: Prince Frederick Zip Code: 20678 County: Calvert

USGS Quadrangle(s):  Prince Frederick, Broomes Island

Property Owner:  Louis L. and Hazel Goldstein Tax Account ID Number: 009036
Tax Map Parcel Number(s): 25 Tax Map Number: 27
Project:  Dominion's Cove Point Expansion Project Agency: FERC

Agency Prepared By:  GAI Consultants, Inc.

Preparer's Name: Matthew Hyland Date Prepared: 5/17/2005

Documentation is presented in:.  MAGI#0501395504

Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: X Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended

Criteria; LA 35_8 “><_C D Considerations; A B C Db E _ F G

Complete if the property Is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property:

Name of the District/Property:
Inventory Number: Eligible: yes Listed: yes

te visit by MHT Staff yes X no Name: Date:

Description of Property and Justification:  (Please attach map and photo)

Oakland Hall, an ante-bellum Greek Revival style mansion dating from 1850, is a front-gabled, temple-plan dwelling, two-stories
tall under a metal roof with two- and one-story extensions appended to the west and south elevations. The building stands on a
continuous brick foundation. The exterior treatment of this frame building is weatherboard with corner boards. The fagade features
a full-height, pedimented portico with a glazed, compass arch window within the tympanum. Boxed columns support the pediment,
which is ornamented with richly carved modillion blocks. The same pattern of carved blocks continues with a band of molded trim
along the eave line on all elevations of the house to emphasize the cornice. A balustrade of jig-sawn balusters delineates the second-
story gallery within the portico. The fenestration in the facade consists of full-height, 9/6, double-hung, wood sash windows and
wood shutters. Other window apertures have 6/6, double-hung, wood sashes. The door aperture in the fagade features an articulated
frontispiece with a transom light, flanking side lights, and engaged columns. Four interior brick chimney stacks, with corbelled
caps, pierce the slope of the roof near the eave walls.

A swimming pool has been installed near the house. A one-story, modern, frame building, which serves as a pool house, has been
constructed near the pool. A wood handicap ramp has been constructed at the front of the house. According to the 1977 survey
report, other features of the historic plantation landscape include a cemetery, a large log meat house, a privy, and a log building,

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW
Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended
Criteria: B X_;C D Considerations: A B € D E F G
MHT Comments;
ewe r, Office of Preservation Services Date
L
Rev lewer, Natmnai R&lster Program " Date




NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM
CT-139 QOakland Hall
Page 2

“vhich may have served as slave barracks.

The Sedwick Family Cemetery is located adjacent to a natural gas pipeline right-of-way and access road in the southeast quadrant
of the tax parcel. This vernacular style cemetery contains approximately twenty-five burials laid out in a rectilinear grid. The
sculptural features within the burial ground include carved head stones and one obelisk. The cemetery has a chain-link fence
enclosure and features mature boxwood shrubbery and a mature specimen tree. The burying ground contains the grave of the Rev.
John Cook Sedwick, a local preacher from the nineteenth century and builder of Oakland Hall, and the grave of Joshua Sedwick,

another prominent member of the Sedwick family.

Preliminary historical research shows that this plantation is associated with a family prominent in the history of Calvert County.
Although modern subdivision development has occurred in the vicinity of the plantation, the historic farm landscape remains intact
and fallow. Through its 555 acres, it continues to convey its historic character as a large plantation. The Sedwick family appears in
county court records as early as the mid-seventeenth century, particularly in the Port Republic area. For instance, the family claims
to have held a 1660 patent to a large tract of land from Lord Baltimore. The plantation also conveys an association with the history
of slavery and its associated relations between slaves and their masters in Maryland. For instance, preliminary research indicates
that some Sedwick family slaves were the offspring of Joshua Sedwick in the nineteenth century. Later, Sedwick family members
released some of their slaves to serve in all black regiments during the Civil War. Further historical research focused on this site
may reveal greater insight into the social and economic history of plantation households in Maryland, ranging from the seventeenth
to the nineteenth century. Furthermore, the property conveys an association with Louis Goldstein, former comptroller of Maryland
and noteworthy twentieth-century Maryland politician. He lived here prior to his death.

Based on its architectural significance and local historical import, Oakland Hall is a NRHP-eligible resource under NRHP criteria
A, B, and C at the state level. The resource conveys an association with significant local events, a locally prominent individual, a
locally prominent family, and possesses distinctive architectural value. The property maintains its integrity. Alterations to the
house, such as the handicap ramp, are reversible.

«.Dakland Hall is recommended as NRHP eligible under criteria A, B, and C. The NRHP boundary for this property follows the
existing tax parcel boundary, which includes 555.45 acres. The NRHP boundary encompasses all contributing resources: the
dwelling, the outbuildings, and the family cemetery.
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CAPSULE SUMMARY

CT-139

Oakland Hall

2395 South Solomons Island Road

Prince Frederick, Calvert County

ca. 1855

Private

Oakland Hall is significant as the long-time residence of Louis L. Goldstein (1913-1998). Goldstein was one of the
most influential figures of the twentieth century in the State of Maryland. The scion of a Prince Frederick
mercantile family, Goldstein dedicated his life to public service beginning in his twenties, serving as a member of
the Maryland General Assembly from 1939 to 1942, as a member of the Maryland State Senate from 1947 to 1958,
and as the Comptroller of Maryland from 1959 to 1998. With the outbreak of World War II, Goldstein enlisted in
the United States Marine Corps in 1942, serving in the Asiatic and Pacific theaters, and was discharged after the
war, in 1946, with the rank of first lieutenant. He was a captain (retired) in the U.S. Marine Corps Reserve.

Goldstein purchased Oakland Hall in 1958, and occupied it until his death in 1998. The property is still owned by

the Goldstein family.

Oakland Hall is an excellent example of the Greek Revival, with some ornate details suggesting the late-n_iueteenth-
century Italianate style. The two-story house telescopes from front to back, with a two-story main block, a full-
width two-story rear wing with a one-story side wing and porch, and a one-story rear ell with a 1950s addition. The
accepted history states that the house was constructed circa 1855, and underwent a complete renovation circa 1958.
The wood-frame structure rests on a stretcher-bond brick foundation and is clad with cypress weatherboard siding.
The dominating front-gable roof of the main block is covered in sheets of corrugated metal. The two-story, three-
bay portico on the fagade features paneled Tuscan posts, wood weatherboard siding, and a five-light lunette window
with a keystone in the enclosed tympanum. The cornice of the main block is ornamented by Italianate-style scroll-
sawn brackets with pendant drops. The screened second-story of the full-height portico has a sawn wood balustrade.
There are two interior corbeled stretcher-bond brick chimneys on the north side of the main block, another interior
chimney on the southern side of the rear wing, and a similarly detailed, but smaller proportioned interior chimney on
the eastern side of the one-story side wing. The large window openings have 6/9 wood-sash on the first story of the
main block, and 6/6 wood-sash windows elsewhere. Each window opening has wood sills, ogee-molded surrounds
with back backing, and louvered wooden shutters. The secondary resources include a cemetery, late-1960s
concrete-block pool house and in-ground pool, a historic privy, a historic meat house, and a non-historic metal shed,

concrete-block well house, wood-frame chicken coop, and brick barbeque.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
histaric Oakland Hall
other

2. Location

street and number 2395 South Solomons Island Road
city, town Prince Frederick
county Calvert

not for publication

vicinity

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Louis L. & Hazel Goldstein
street and number PO Box 1110
city, town Pr. Frederick state MD

telephone  (410) 535-1405
zip code 20678-1110

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Calvert County Courthouse

city, town Pr. Frederick liber

tax map and parcel: 27:25
JLB 48 folio 133

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report

Other

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function
district public agriculture Iandsc§pe
X building(s) X private commerce/trade recreation/culture
structure both defense religion
site X domestic social
: education transportation

object ;
funerary work in progress
government unknown
health care X vacant/not in use
industry other:

Resource Count
Contributing Noncontributing

2 2 buildings
1 sites
1 1 structures
B objects
4 3 Total

Number of Contributing Resources
previously listed in the Inventory

4



7. Description Inventory No. ~ CT-139

Condition

excellent X deteriorated
. good —_ ruins
__ fair __ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

SETTING

The property consists of 555.46 acres of heavily wooded land. The buildings are located on the south side of South Solomons
Island Road. The large dwelling sits in a clearing amidst heavily wooded land, at the end of an almost three-quarters-of-a-mile
gravel drive. The outbuildings include a late-1960s concrete-block pool house and in-ground pool, a historic privy, a historic meat
house, and a non-historic metal shed, concrete-block well house, wood-frame chicken coop, and brick barbeque. The cemetery is
located approximately 500 yards to the southwest of the house.

PRIMARY RESOURSE

QOakland Hall is an excellent example of the Greek Revival, with some details suggesting the late-nineteenth-century Italianate style.
The house telescopes from front to back, with a two-story main block, a full-width two-story rear wing with a one-story side wing
and porch, and a one-story rear ell with a 1950s addition The accepted history of the house states that it was constructed circa
1855, and underwent a complete renovation circa 1958. The wood-frame structure rests upon a stretcher-bond brick foundation
and is clad with cypress weatherboarding. The dominating front gable roof is covered in sheets of corrugated metal. The two-
story, three-bay portico on the fagade features paneled Tuscan posts, wood weatherboard siding, and a five-light lunette window
with a keystone in the enclosed tympanum. The cornice of the main block is ornamented by Italianate-style scroll-sawn brackets
with pendant drops. The second-story of the full-height portico has a sawn wood balustrade and has been enclosed with screens.
The porch deck and steps are constructed of stretcher-bond brick, and a wooden ramp leads from the front yard to the level of the
porch. There are two interior corbeled stretcher-bond brick chimneys on the north side of the main block, another interior chimney
on the southern side of the rear wing, and a similarly detailed, but smaller proportioned interior chimney on the eastern side of the
one-story side wing.

The large window openings have 6/9 wood-sash on the first story of the main block, and 6/6 wood-sash windows elsewhere. Each
window opening has wood sills, ogee-molded surrounds with back backing, and louvered wooden shutters. Single and narrow
paired windows pierce the side elevations of the main block. The house’s main entry is elaborately detailed, with a wide, single-
leaf five-paneled wood door and an ornate wood surround. The surround has paneled pilasters with plinths and scrolled brackets
with pendent drops, bead-and-reels, and sawn rosettes. The heavy ogee-molded entablature has a boxed cornice and egg-and-dart
motif. The frieze of the entablature is adorned with a sawn rosette with a fleur-de-lis. The entry has narrow three-light sidelights
and a wide four-light transom with finely detailed muntins.

The two-story rear wing has a front gable roof covered in sheets of corrugated metal. Greek Revival in style, the wing has a two-
story porch running the depth of the north elevation. Similar to the two-story porch on the fagade of the main block, the side porch
has paneled Tuscan posts, a brick floor with side-entry steps, and thin balusters on the screened second-story. The ogee-molded
boxed cornice of the wing is finely detailed with dentil molding and returns. The wing is pierced by single 6/6 wood-sash windows
with wood sills, ogee-molded surrounds with back backing, and louvered wooden shutters. A one-story addition was constructed
on the southern elevation of the rear wing. It has a hipped roof covered in sheets of corrugated metal and a wrap-around screened
porch. The overhanging ogee-molded cornice is finished with sawn water leaf and dart motif.

The one-story ell attached to the west elevation of the rear wing is clad with wood weatherboard siding. Comparatively modest in
detailing, the ell has a gable roof with corrugated metal sheets and a boxed comice. It is pierced by a single 6/6 wood-sash window
and a six-light and paneled wood door. The one-story 1950s addition on the west elevation of the ell sits on a concrete-block
foundation, and is constructed of concrete block that is molded to appear to be weatherboard siding. It has a gable roof covered
with sheets of corrugated metal, an exterior-end stretcher-bond brick chimney on the west side, and rowlock brick sills. The wide
window openings have 6/6 sash with louvered shutters. The single-leaf entry, accessed by brick steps, holds a six-light and paneled
wood door.

SECONDARY RESOURCES
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The secondary resources include a cemetery, late-1960s concrete-block pool house and in-ground pool, a historic privy, a historic
meat house, and a non-historic metal shed, concrete-block well house, wood-frame chicken coop, and brick barbeque. The meat
house sits on concrete-block piers, has a front-gable roof covered with sheets of corrugated metal, and is clad with wood
weatherboarding. It has a wood box cornice, and a one-leaf door constructed of vertical wood boards. The privy sits on wood posts
that rest directly on the ground, and that have been shored up with concrete blocks in places. It is a front-gable structure covered in
sheets of corrugated metal, is clad with wood weatherboard siding, has a wood box cornice, and a wood screen door. The
weatherboard siding of the privy has been attached to the structure with wire nails.

The cemetery is approximately forty by fifty feet, and is enclosed by a twentieth-century metal chain-link fence. It is overgrown,
and some of the formerly ornamental shrubs in the center of the enclosure have grown wild. This cemetery contains roughly twenty
graves, all of which seem to belong to the Sedwick family, owners of the Oakland Hall property prior to Goldstein. The most
recent grave dates to 1953, and the oldest readable marker belongs to an I. Sedwick, who died on January 17, 1799.



8. Significance Inventory No.  CT-139

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
1600-1699 agriculture economics health/medicine performing arts
1700-1799 archeology education industry philospohy

X 1800-1899 X architecture engineering invention politics/government

X 1900-1999 art entertainment/ landscape architecture religion

2000- commerce recreation — law science
communications ethnic heritage literature social history
community planning exploration/ maritime industry transportation
conservation settlement military other:

Specific dates ca. 1855; 1958 Architect/Builder  Unknown

Construction dates ca. 1855

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X notevaluated

Prepare a 6ﬁe—ﬁaragrapﬁ -summary statement of signiﬁﬁ:ance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a nar'ré.ﬁve discussion of
the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.)

Qakland Hall, at 2395 South Solomons Island Road, is significant as the long-time residence of Louis L. Goldstein (1913-1998).(1)
Mr. Goldstein, in his capacity as a member of the Maryland General Assembly from 1939 to 1942, as a member of the Maryland
State Senate from 1947 to 1958, and as the Comptroller of Maryland from 1959 to 1998, was one of the most influential figures of
the twentieth century in the state of Maryland. The scion of a Prince Frederick mercantile family, Mr. Goldstein dedicated his life to
public service beginning in his twenties. The outbreak of World War II (1941-1945) interrupted his political career. He enlisted in
the United States Marine Corps in 1942, serving in the Asiatic and Pacific theaters, and was discharged after the war, in 1946, with
the rank of first lieutenant. He was a captain (retired) in the U.S. Marine Corps Reserve. He bought Oakland Hall, built circa 1855,
to serve as a home for his family in 1958, and occupied it until the time of his death in 1998.(2) The property is still owned by the
Goldstein family.

ENDNOTES

(1) All biographical information concerning Louis Goldstein is taken from: "Louis L. Goldstein, Maryland Comptroller of the
Treasury," Maryland State Archives Home Page (Annapolis, MD: Maryland State Archives, 2003 [cited 19 December 2003]) found
at <http://www.mdarchives.state.md.us/msa/mdmanual/O8 conoft/former/html/msa01579.html>.

(2) The purchase date of Oakland Hall is from: Philip T. Goldstein, interview conducted by Gerald M. Maready, Jr., Prince
Frederick, MD, December 15, 2003.


http://www.mdarchives.state.md.us/msa/mdmanual/08conoff/former/html/msa01579.html

9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No.  CT-139

See continuation sheet.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 555.45
Acreage of historical setting Unknown
Quadrangle name Broomes Island Quadrangle scale  1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

Oakland Hall is located at 2395 South Solomons Island Road, Prince Frederick, Calvert County, Maryland. The historic house,
along with its historic outbuildings and cemetery, is noted on Tax Map 27, Parcel 25. It has been historically associated with
Parcle 25 since the second quarter of the nineteenth century.

11. Form Prepared By

namettitle Laura Trieschmann, Architectural Historian

orgaﬁization Ei{T Traceries, Inc. date 11/5/2004
street and number 1121 5th Street NW telephone  (202) 393-1199
city or toﬁn Washington state DC zip code 20001

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974
supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and
do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville MD 21032
410-514-7600
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Goldstein, Philip T., interview conducted by Gerald M. Maready, Jr. (Prince Frederick, MD, December 15, 2003).

"Louis L. Goldstein, Maryland Comptroller of the Treasury." Maryland State Archives Home Page (Annapolis, MD: Maryland
State Archives, 2003 [cited 19 December 2003]) at

http://www.mdarchives.state.md.us/msa/mdmanual/08 conoff/ former/html/msa01579.html.


http://www.mdarchives.state.md.us/msa/mdmanual/08conoff/former/html/msa01579.html
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

HINAME

HISTORIC
Qakland Hall

AND/OR COMMON

BALOCATION

STREET & NUMBER
yvland Routes 2,4)

CITY, TOWN

Port Republic X viciniTY OF

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

STATE

COUNTY

Maryland Calvert
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT _PUBLIC 3L_OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
“ BUILDING(S) “ PRIVATE __UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
—STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL ZLPRIVATE RESIDENCE
—_SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT __IN PROCESS —YES: RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
_NO __MILITARY __OTHER:
NAME _
Louis L. Goldstein Telephone #:
STREET & NUMBER
CITY. TOWN STATE , Z1lp code
____ VICINITY OF
I LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION T
ibex #: AWR 38/322
’ COURTHOUSE, Folio #:
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC.
- STREET & NUMBER
CITY, TOWN STATE

'DAREPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN

STATE




KA DESCRIPTION =139

CONDITION CH_ECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED L UNALTERED Y ORIGINAL SITE
GOOD _RUINS __ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

Bl SIGNIFICANCE
FERIOD

—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE
—1800-1698 —ARCHITECTURE
_/I?DO-'I 799 —ART
“1800-1899 —COMMERCE

© __1900- —COMMUNICATIONS

—COMMUNITY PLANNING
—CONSERVATION
—ECONOMICS

—EDUCATION
—ENGINEERING
—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT
—INDUSTRY

—INVENTION

—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
—LAW

— LITERATURE

—MILITARY

—MuUsIC

—PHILOSOPHY
—_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

CT-129

—RELIGION

—SCIENCE

—SCULPTURE
—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

BUILDER/ARGCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

CONTINUE QN SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY -
NAME / TITLE \’Vc:{f‘-@ L. Nie!d, ” .

Historic Sites Survey Wintr o~ /b-77
ORGANIZATION Broomes Island, Maryland 20615 DATE
586-2050

STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
CITY OR TOWN STATE

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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OAKLAND HALL

Preliminary Report

Oakland Hall is a large and impressive example of the Greek Revival
"temple", which according Stein and others was built in the 1850's by
Reverend John Sedwick. Sedwick's will (VCC 1/340) mentions Oakland Hall
as his "home place," but no other documents have as yet been produced.

The house is two full stories high, three bays wide, and two very long
bays in length., The plan is longitudenal., Additions of one and two stories
telescope to the rear (west) in three distinct stages. The last would
appear to include an early kitchen,

The front (east) is demonstrated by a full portico containing a second
story gallery. Sguare columms suppoort the large pediment which is decorated
with a fanlight window and dentil-brackets., A tall and richly carved door
frame includes a transon and sidelights. It is located on the south side
suggesting a side-hall plan. Very tall, 9/6 sash windowscsuggest the high
ceilings within,

There are two large interior chimneys on the north side of the building
which serve fireplaces on both floors. A single story addition is on the
south side of the building, and it has been decorated with Vietorian
gingerbread,

In addition to the house, the plantation which revolved around it is
survived by a large log meathouse, an early privy, and a2 log cabin which
appears in an early Twentieth Century photograph, which is in the possession

of Beatrice Smith in BarstoW.
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Some distance from the house (c. 100' east of gasline right-of-way)
is a family cemetery containing the grave of Reverend John Sedwick and many

members of his family.
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According to research done by the present owners, Oakland Hall was
built ¢. 1850 by the Reverend John Sedwick on land which was granted to
Thomas Sedwick in 1650. It is said that the construction timbers are
chestnut, pine oak, and cypress (part of Battle @reek Cypress Swemp and the
largest cypress in laryland are on the prOperty) that were cut and sent to
Baltimore by boat for dressing. The house is, in fact, situated among a
stand of oak trees and is serviced by several outbuildings which include a
log meathouse and log cabin.

Qakland Hall derives its form from the Greck Revival phase of the
Federal Period. Although that period is generally conceeded to have ended
with the Civil War, the 1850's building date attributed to Oakland Hall
is late but, nevertheless, mekes it a part of that period. Although there
are several houses in the county which exhibit elements of the Classical
Revival, Oakland Hall may be its best and its only example of the Greek
Temple mode. There are elements of the building which are more Romen in
nature, and there are indeed additions exhibiting Gothic taste. All three
revivals found credibility during the first half of the Nineteenth Century.

The vertical thrust of the building and the heavy or mgssive portico
place it among those buildin s associated with the Greek Revival. It is

pointed out by H. Morrison in Early American Architecture (as well as

others) that both the Roman and Greek styles offered a definite symbolism
to the young Republic of the United States, which could be associated with

the ideals of an ancient republic., Furthermore, the trials and tribulations
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of modern Greece in her fight for independence during the 1820's gave an
impetus to this association that is expressed in many Americen art forms.
While the Greek Revival saw its hey day, 1820-50's, the Classical
Revivél itself finds its beginnings in the United States in the 1780's
with Thomas Jefferson, Benljjamin Latrobe, and others asserting the Romanm
style. Jefferson's State Capitol in Richmond (178481790) was based on
the Roman Maison Cairee. Oakland Hall bears a resemblance, not only in
the fact that both are ovbiously classical, but in the relationships
between the main block and the portido what is alrecady a longitudenally,
oriented building is accentuated by the portico. ZPerhaps an even greater
resemblance can be found in Jefferson's designs for the pavillions at
University of Virginia (1820-1822) particularly in Pavilions II-and IV
which employ both the Ionic and Doric orders. In both of these buildings
and in Oakland Hall, one finds longitudenal plans, high porticos, high
ceilings indicated by tall first story windows, and pediments vented by
fanlight windows, At Oakland Hall, there are ornate brackets which suggest
the dentils seen in the pediments and beneath the eaves of Jefferson's

buildings.
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